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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Kerala First Health Services Private Limited,

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kerala First Health Services Private Limited (the
“Holding Company”),and its subsidiary company Baalyam Healthcare Private Limited (The Holding Company
and its subsidiary entity together referred to as “the Group”) ,which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at March 31,2023, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income),
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.(hereinafter referred as ‘Consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Group’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act and the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

® Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Group has an adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to the financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management,

® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. l-[owu ver, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. AV ~
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= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

M

@
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As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. \

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the respective Companies
included in the Group as on March 31, 2023, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
respective company included in the Group, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”, and

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Group to its director during the ended March 31, 2023 is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
of the Act. B T
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(4) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on our reports on separate financial statements of the
respective companies included in the group:

(a) The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations which would impact
its financial position of the group, Refer Note 27 of the consolidated financial statements.

(b) The Consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the respective companies included in the group.

(d) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested by the company and its subsidiary, to or in any other person
or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(i) The Management has represented, that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have
been received by the Company and its subsidiary, from any person or entity, including foreign
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under Paragraph 4(d)(i)
and 4(d)(ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

(e) The respective companies included in the group have not proposed or declared or paid any dividend
during the year ended March 31, 2023. Accordingly, the compliance with provisions of section 123
of the Act are not applicable.

() As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable only w.e.f. April I,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not

applicable.

for VARMA & VARMA
Z VN Chartered Accountants
V& ' "":,',;,\"\‘\\ FRN 0045328
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DACCO A MITHUN LAKSHMANA PAI
Place: Bengaluru Partner

Date: May 15, 2023 Membership No. 219813
ICAIUDIN: 23219813BGVBYX8010
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ANNEXURE A

Referred to in Paragraph (1) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of
our report of even date on consolidated financial statements of Kerala First Health Services Private
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023.

According to the information and eexplanations given to us, the following companies incorporated in India and
included in the Consolidated financial Statements have certain remarks included in our reports under CARO of
respective Companies, have been given below.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 15, 2023

A&

-
k

SL | Name CIN Holding Clause number
No. Company/ of the CARO
subsidiary/ report which is
Associate/ qualified or
Joint Venture adverse
1 Kerala First Health Services Private | U85110KL2005PTC018434 Holding clause vii (a)
Limited company
2 Kerala First Health Services Private | U85110KL2005PTC018434 Holding clause ix(a)
Limited company
3 Kerala First Health Services Private | U85110KL2005PTC018434 Holding clause xvii
Limited company
for VARMA & VARMA
: \P~ & T \\ Chartered Accountants
VA -/ \\ FRN 0045328
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MITTIUN LAKSHMANA PAI

Partner

Membership No. 219813
ICAI UDIN: 23219813BGVBYX8010

# 424, 4th C Main, 6th Cross, OMBR Layout, Banaswadi, Bangalore 560043
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ANNEXURE B

To the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Kerala First Health
Services Private Limited for the year ended March 31, 2023

[Referred to in Paragraph (2)(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section
of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kerala First Health Services Private
Limited (“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiary company Baalyam Healthcare Private Limited (The
Company and its subsidiary entity together referred to as “the Group”) as of and for the year ended March 31,
2023 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended on that date.

Managements and Board of Directors Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference to the consolidated financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls with reference to the
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls system with reference to the consolidated financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements.

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that, (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding company and its subsidiary incorporated in India has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal
control with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 34 to the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023,
on Internal Control with reference to consolidated financial statements regarding the Internal Control System in
place and its operation.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.
for VARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

St

MITIHUN LAKSHMANA PAI
Place: Bengaluru Partner
Date: May 15, 2023 Membership No. 219813

ICAT UDIN: 23219813BGVBYX8010
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LINUTED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USST TOKL2005PTCO18434
CONSOLIDATED BATLANCE SHHEET AS AT MARCII 31, 2023
(A//_ﬂl_n/ull.\' in Indian Rupees in thousands . except othenise stated)

Particulars

Note No.

Asat
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
April 01,2021

ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Properly, plant and equipment
(b) Right-of-Use Asscls

(¢) Other Intangible assets

(d) Intangible assets under development

(¢) Financial Assels

(ii) Other financial assets
() Income Tax Assel (Net)
{2) Other non-current assets
Total Non - Current Assets (A)

Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial assels
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other financial assets

(¢} Other current assets

Total Current Assets (B)

Total Asscts (A+B)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a) Equity Share capital

(b) Other equity

Total Equity (A)

Liabilitics
Non-current liabilitics
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(b) Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilitics (B)

Current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enlerprise:

(b) Provisions
(c) Other current liabilities
Total Current Liabilitics (C)

Total Equity and Liabilitics (A+B+C)

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

3A
3B
3C
D

D oo~ N

10
11

13
14

12
13

15
14
16

4245 26 321178 3,884 39
41.553 14 19758 36 28274 10
1.151 30 464 22 31459
8,026 26
5,841 06 4,722.03 435518
3.42022 2,845 46 4,188 04
1,080 01 395 12 780 39
65,317.25 31,396.97 41,796.69
3,52926 2,728 85 2,850 46
19,359 30 12,125 89 9,552.99
45,010 57 377 67 58350
957.65 62298 524 81
6,36001 7,036.67 904,40
75,216.79 22,892.06 14,416.16
140,534.04 54,289.03 56,212.85
6,264 94 4,364 34 4,364 34
58,261.67 (59,478.55) (50,890.25)
64,526.61 (55,114.21) (46,525.91)
11,471 41 35,204 19
35,029.16 19,081 52 24,060 09
2,980 39 2,611 44 1,387 42
38,009.55 33,164.37 60,741.70
4,260.52 33,470 14 7,705 58
11,538 64 4,978 56 732727
8,791.32 18,537 16 14,341 23
319.55 192.74 1,581.96
13,087.85 19,060 27 11,041 02
37,997.88 76,238.87 41,997.06
140,534.04 54,289.03 56,212.85

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors;

Kerala First Health Services Private Limited

F g

RAJIV VASUDEVAN
Managing Director
DIN:01786120

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 62 0¥-2.02 3
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Director
DIN:05299539

Place: Chennai

Date: 0L ~-04 - 20273

As per onr separate report of even date attached
For VARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants

FRN 004532S

MITITUN LAKSIIMANA PAL

Partner

Membership No 219813

Place: Bengaluru

Date :)S .©8 Az
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN): U851 [0KL200SPTC018434

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023

Al Amounts in fuclicn fupees i iliousamnds | except otherwise stated,
! 12

Particulars

Income

Revenue Irom Operations
Other Income

Total Income (A)

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade
Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses (B)

Profit/(loss) before tax (C)=(A-B)
Less: Tax expense

(i) Current tax

(i) Deferred tax

Profit / (loss) after tax for the year

Other Comprehensive Income/(loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of profit and loss
i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

ii) Income Tax effect

Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (D)
Total comprehensive income for the year (E)=(C+D)

Earnings per cquity share of par value of Rs 10 cach

Basic & Diluted (in Rs.)

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanving notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial stuticmeiis

Note No.  For the year ended

17
18

19
20
21

22

26

For the vear ended
March 31, 2022

March 31. 2023

96,712 34 77,793 25
845.05 921 14
__ 97,557.39 78,714.39
1,309.29 83216
6,428 32 5,348 14
(800.41) 121.60
47,782 41 37,175 03
5,790 18 5,276 47
11,369 48 9,622 50
41,190 75 29,171 14
113,070.03 87,547.04
(15,512.63) (8,832.65)
(15,512.63) (8,832.65)
153.83 244.36
153.83 24436
(15,358.80) (8,588.29)
(31.04) (20.24)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kerala First Health Services Private Limited

vy J

RAJIV VASUDEVAN KRISE
Managing Director Director
DIN:01786120 DIN:05299539
Place: Bengaluru Place: Chennai

Date: () ). 06720 23 Date: ®3-p- 2022

AN AKHTLESWARAN

As per our separate report of even date attached
For YARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

A /H"L__'_ =

MITHUN LAKSHMANA PAI

Partner
Membership No 219813

Place: Bengaluru

Date :;?;ag D22
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IKERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LINMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USSTHOKL200SPTCO 18434
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASI FLLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023
(111 Amonnts in Indian Rupees in thoysils | except otherivise stated)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No, March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities

Loss for the year (15,512.63) (8,832.65)
Adjustment for:

Depicciation and amortisation expense 11,369 48 9.622 50

Interest on sceurily deposit measured at amortised cost (364 64) (338 42)
Other Inlerest income (478 93) (270 68)
Re-measurement gains on defined benelit plans through OCI 153 83 244 36

Interest expense on lease 3,170.15 236023

Other Interest expense 2,241.33 2,467 42

Provision for doubtful advances .

Expected credit loss (ECL) 1,223 83 34912

Operating profit before working capital changes 1,802.41 5,601.87

Adjustments for (increase)/decrease in operating assets

- Inventories (800 41) 121 60

- financial assels (9,87501) (3,162 81)
- Other assets 999 (5,737 36)
Adjustments for increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities

- Trade payables (9,745 83) 4,19592

- Provisions 495.76 (165 21)
- Other liabilities (5,972.43) 8,019.25

Cash generated from operations (24,085.51) 8,873.27

Income lax (Paid) / Refunds (net) (475.86) 1,579 39

Net cash gencrated from operating activities (A) (24,561.37) 10,452.66

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property plant & equipment including [ntangible Assets under development (11,302.45) (583.77)
Interest [ncome received during the year 361.81 2422

Changes in other bank balances held with in deposit accounts o _(35.94) (224 22)
Net cash used in Investing Activities (B) (10,976.58) (783.77)

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds/(Repayments) from Borrowings including interest thercon (42,922 36) (525 65)
Lease payment (11,906 42) (9,349.08)
Proceeds from issue of share capital including securities premium 134,999 62 -
Net cash used in Financing Activities (C) 80,170.84 (9,874.73)
Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) = (D) 44,632.90 (205.83)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (E) 377.67 583 50
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D) +(E) 45,010.57 377.67
Cash and bank balances as reported in the balance sheet* 7 45,010.57 377.67
* Comprises:
- Cash on hand 183.32 8653
- Balances with banks in current and deposits accounts 44.827.25 29114
45,010.57 377.67

As per our separate report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors — For VARMA & VARMA
Kerala First Health Services Private Limited == ;= Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

'

N/

RAJIV VASUDEVAN K Im AKHIEESWARAN

MITHHUN LAKSIIMANA PAl

Managing Director Director ) AC Partner
DIN:01786120 DIN:05299539 N——— Membership No 219813
Place: Bengaluru Place: Chennai Place: Bengaluru
Date: 0 0% . 2023 Date: &2 -0¢— 2023 Date : ) §.0€, 2022
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KERALA FIRST HEALTII SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL2005PTC018434
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands . except otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2021 436,434 4,364 34
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2022 436,434 4,364 34
Changes in equity share capital during the year-Equily shares issued during the year 190,060 1,900 60
Balance as at March 31, 2023 626,494 6,264.94
B. Other Equity
Particulars Reserves amd Surpluy Other Items of OCI Total
Sccurities Retained earnings Remeasurement of

premium Account defined benefit plans
Balance as at April 01, 2021 133,621.98 (185,058.46) 546.22 (50,890.25)
Add :Loss for the Year - (8,832.65) - (8,832 65)
Add: Re-measurements adj. on defined benefit plans - 244 36 244 36
As at March 31, 2022 133,621.98 (193,891.11) 790.58 (59,478.55)
Add :Loss for the Year - (15,512.63) - (15,512.63)
Add: premium on issue of equity shares 133,099 02 - - 133,099.02
Add: Re-measurements adj on defined benefit plans - - 153 83 153.83
As at March 31, 2023 200,721.00 (209.403.75) 944.42 58.261.67

As per our report of even date attached
For VARMA & VARMA
\ Chartered Accountants
A4 \ FRN 0045328
\' =
. MITIIUN LAKSHMANA PAI
Partner

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Kerala First Health Services Private Limited

KRISIHINAN AKHILESWARAN

RAJIV VASUDEVAN

p
7/

I

Managing Director
DIN:01786120

Place: Bengaluru

Director
DIN:05299539

Place: Chennai

Membership No 219813

Place: Bengaluru

Date: Date: 02~ ¢ - L0123 Date : ys_agv’big
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KERALA FIRST HEALTII SERVICES PRIVATE LINITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN): U851 10KL200SPTCO 18434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENMEN

'S FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

I Corporate Information
Kerala First Tealth Services Private Limited (“the Company/ the Parent™) a private limited Company, was incorporated on July 15, 2005 undet the

provisions of Companics Act 1956 with its registered ofTice located in Kochi (State of Kerala) The Company is primarily engaged in the business of
operation ol hospital and clinics pioncering in Kerala Ayurveda medical services w e [0 December 2022 the Company is a subsidiary of’ Apollo Hospital
Iintetprises Limited, a public limited Company listed in recognised stock exchange

The subsidiary considered in the consolidated linancial statements for the vear ended 3 1st March 2023 15
Name of the Company Relationship Country of % Voting Power

! Incorporation
Bnalyam Healtheare Private Limited |'Wholly owned subsidiary Indin 100%
The Company and its subsidiary together referred as 'the Group'

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafier referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notilied
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time The consolidated linancial slatements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The
accounting policics are applicd consistently to all the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 are the first financial stalements the Group has prepared under Ind AS. For all periods upto
and including the year ended March 31, 2022, the Group prepared its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards notified under the
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with the Companics (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous
GAAP") immediately before adopting Ind AS. The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 and the opening Balance Sheet as at April
01, 2021 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative information Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of the transition from
Previous GAAP to Ind AS on the Group ’s Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows are provided in Note 2.22

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal operating cycle, paragraph 66 and 69 of Ind AS | and
other criteria as set oul in the Division 1I of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 Based on the nature of services, its products and the time between
acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities

The consolidated financial statcments are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), the [unctional currency of the Group. The Group has decided to round off the
figures lo the ncarest thousand with two decimals Transactions and balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have
been reflected as “*0” in the relevant notes to these financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of
Direclors on May 02, 2023

2.2 Usc of cstimates

The preparation of consolidated financial slatements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions in the application of
accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates
Continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively

2.3 Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary as at and for the year ended March 31,
2023 Control is achieved when the Group has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant activates over the inveslee. The subsidiaries are deconsolidated from the

date the control ceases

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book values of the like items
of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary, offsetting (eliminating) the carrying amount of the
parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of the each subsidiary and after eliminating all significant intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions and also unrealized profits or losses. The significant accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been consistent with (hat of the

policies followed by the parent

The financial statements of the group entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the Group i.e. year
ended March 31, 2023
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USS1TO0KL200SPTCO18434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIH 31, 2023

2.4 Statement of Cash flows

The cash flows of the Group are segiegated into operating, investing and linancing activitics Cash Flow statement is prepared in accordance with Ind AS-
7. Cash Flow Statement, using the indirect method Lo determine cash Mows from operating uctivities Cash & cash cquivalents for the purpose of cash
flow statement comprise of cash in hand, demand deposit placed with banks and term deposit with banks (with an original maturity of three months or

less)

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment ("PPE") and Depreciation
Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at its carrying cost which is an amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (if any) Direct costs specifically attributable to the acquisition and installation of Property, Plant and Equipment like freight and
other costs are capitalised till the asscls arc ready to be put to use. Any trade discounts and rebales are deducted in arriving at the purchase price
Subscquent expendilure is recognised as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that futurc cconomic benefils deriving from
the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing {ixed assels, including day-
to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged (o the slatement of profit and Loss for the year during which such
expensces are incurred
Gains or losscs arising from derecognilion of fixed assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the assel and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized
Depreciation
Depreciation is provided afler considering 5% residual value on straight line method over the useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipment as
estimaled by the management which is based on the estimated useful lives as management believes thal these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used. All the additions (o PPE during the year have been depreciated based
on the number of days from the date it is put to use during the year
Leasehold improvements arc depreciated over the primary lease period or useful life, whichever is lower, on a straight-line basis
Assets individually costing up to Rs. 5 thousand are {ully depreciated in the year of scquisilion -
Asset Description - Estimated Uscful lives
ILeasehold improvements Over the primary lease term
Medical Equipment 13 Years
Elcctrical Installations 10 Years
Furnitures and Fixtures 10 Years
Vehicles 8 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Computers 3 Years
Upon firsi-time adoption of Ind AS, the Group has elecled (o measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its
deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i e, April 01,2021

2.6 Intangible asscts and amortisation of intangible assets

Computer software giving rise to future economic benefit is recognized as intangible asscts and are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
amortization. Intangible assels are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives from the date that they are available for use

Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment,

ifany
Compuler software is amortized over the lower of licence period and estimated useful life of 3 Years on a straight line basis

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit and loss statement when the asset is derecognized

Internally gencrated intangibles
The Company capitalizes certain development costs incurred in connection with its internal use software These capitalized costs are related to the

development of its website and software platform that is hosted by the Company and used by the new website and certain customers. The Company
capitalizes all direct and incremental costs incurred during the development phase, until such time when the software is substantially complete and ready

for use
The Company also capitalizes costs related to specific upgrades and enhancements when it is probable the expenditures will result in additional features,

functionalily and significant customer experience

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Group has elected to measure its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on
the date of transition to Ind AS i g., April 01,2021
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USSTTOKL2005PTC018434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIT 31, 2023

2.7  Leases : Group as a lessee
A contracl is, o contains, a lease il the contract conveys Lhe right to contiol the use ol an identified asset for a period of time in exchange foi

consideration

Iffective April 1, 2021, the Group adopted tnd AS 116 Leases Lhe Company recorded the lease tiability al the present value of the lease payments
discounled at the incremental borrowing ratc and the right of use asset at ils carrying amount as if the slandard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of inttial application

The Company recognises right-of-use asscl representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost
of the right-of-usc assel measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made al or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimale of costs to
be incurred by (he lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located The right-of-use
assels is subscquently measured at cos less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability The right-of-use asscts is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or
useful life of right-ol use assct The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and
equipment  Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable
Impairment loss, il any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

The Group recognises a right-ol-usc assel and a corresponding lease liability with respect (o all leasc agreements in which it is the lessee, excepl for short-
term leases (delined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value asscls For these leases, the Company recognises the lease
paymenis as an operaling expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless anolher systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assct are consumed This expense is presented within “other expenses’ in statement of profit and loss

The Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the Balance Shect.

On adoption of IndAS 116, the Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

« Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

« Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately betore the date of initial application

« Applied Lhe short-term leases exemptions to leases with leasc term that ends within [2 months of the date of initial application
+ Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application

2.8 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of assets arc reviewed at each Balance Sheet dale if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/cxternal factors An
impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount is the grealer of the
assels net sclling price and value in usc. In asscssing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted (o their present value at appropriate rate
After impairment, depreciation is provided on revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life. Previously recognised impairment loss
is further provided or reversed depending on changes in circumstances

2.9 Inventories

[nventories of pharmacy are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value Cost is determined on a First-in-First out basis. All direct costs incurred
excluding laxes and duties that are refundable for bringing the inventories to their present location and condition are added to the cost of inventories

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in ordinary course of business, less estimated costs (o be incurred to make the sale. Adequate provision
is made for slow moving, non-moving and expired inventory, as determined necessary

2.10 Revenue recognition

The Group earns revenue primarily by providing healthcare services and sale of pharmaceutical products. Other sources of revenue include revenue
carned as intercst on deposits held with banks

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expecls 1o receive in exchange for those products or services. When there is uncertainty on ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is

postponed until such uncertainty is resolved

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of Pharmacy goods arc recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the

buyer, usually on dclivery of the goods. The Company collects goods and services tax (GST) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are nol
economic benelits (Towing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue

Income from services
Revenues from Hospital services are recognized as and when services are rendered. The Company collects goods and scrvices tax, if applicable on

behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company Hence, it is cxcluded from revenue The Company
recogniscs the share of revenue in respect of hospital services rendered through another entity as a primary supplier on accrual basis as and when services

are rendered
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KERALA FIRST HEALTIT SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USSTT0KI.2005PTCO18434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Interest
Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis laking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rale Interest income is
included under the head "other income” in the profit and loss statement

2.11 Forcign currency transactions

Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting

curtency and the foreign currency at the dale of the transaction

Conversion
[Foreign currency monelary assets arc restaled using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date Non-monciary items which are measured in terms
of historical cost denominated in a loreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the (ransaction Non-monelary items which are

measured at [air value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are translated using Lthe exchange rate at the date when the value was

determined

Exchange Differences

Exchange differences arising on the seltlement of monelary items not covered above, or on reporling such monetary items of Group at rates dilferent
from (hose al which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in

the year in which they arise
2.12 Employece benefits

a. Defined Contribution Plans
The Group has defined contribution plan for its employees comprising of Employees' Provident Fund and Employees’ State Insurance, Contributions to

the above plans are charged to the profit and loss statement for the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due The Company has no
obligation, other than the above mentioned funds

b. Defined Benefit Plans

Gratuity
Gratuily liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 is a defined benefit obligation The Plan provides payment Lo vested employees al retirement,

death or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment with the Company. The
Group has not funded its gratuity obligation. The cost of providing benefits is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the

projected unit credit method

Employee benefits cxpense in respect of giatuity to employecs is presented in accordance with Ind AS - 19

Remeasurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in nel interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debil or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur Remeasurement is not

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and the date that the Group recognises

related restructuring costs

¢.  Other Employee Benefit expense

The amounts paid or payable on account ol short-term employee benefits largely comprising of salary, Annual incentives and short term leave salary is
valued on undiscounted basis and changed is (he statement of Profit and loss for the period

2.13 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value Transaction costs that are directly altributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than {inancial asscts and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair valuc of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly altributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognised immediately in stalement of profit and loss

Financial assets
At initial recognilion trade accounts receivables (in accordance with Ind AS 115) are measured at their transaction price and subsequently measured al

carrying value as of Initial recognition less impairment allowance (if any)

Investments in equity instruments are recognized and subsequently measured at fair value. The Company’s equity investments are not held for trading In
general, changes in the fair value of equily investments are recognized in the income statement. [However, at initial recognition the Company elected, on
an instrumenl-by-instrument basis, to represent subscquent changes in the fair value of individual strategic equity investments in other comprehensive

income (loss) (“*OC17), if any
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USSTHOKL2005PTCO18434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents
I'he Group considers all highly liquid (inancial instruments which are readily convertible into known amounts ol cash that are subject o an insignificant

risk of change in value and having original matwitics of three months or less [rom the date of purchase, o be cash equivalents Cash and Cash
Iiquivalents consist of balances with banks which are uniestricted for withdrawal and usage Restricted cash and bank balances are classificd and

disclosed as other bank balances

Trade Receivables
Trade reccivables are amounts duc from customers for goods sold or scrvices performed in the ordinary course of business Trade reccivables are
recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they conlain signiticant financing component, when they are recognised at

Tair value

The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue A reccivable is a right to
consideration that is conditional only upon passage of time Revenue in excess of billings is recorded as unbilled revenuc only the passage of lime is
required before (he payment is due Invoicing in excess of earnings are classificd as contract liabilities which is disclosed as scparately in balance sheet
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet

Contract Assets (unbilled revenue) are rights to consideration in exchange for goods and services Lhat the Company has transferred to a customer when
such right is condilional upon something other than passage ol time

Amortised Cost and Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period

The cffective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts cstimated future cash receipts (including all fees and poinls paid or reccived that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, ransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expecled life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriale, a siorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition

Impairment of financial assets
The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, trade reccivables, other

conlractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset not designated as at FVTPL The expecled credit loss approach requires that all impacted
financial assets will carry a loss allowance based on their expected credit losses Expected credit losses are a probability-wcighted estimate of credit

losses over the contractual life of the financial assets

For rade receivables or any contractual right Lo receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS
115, the Group measures the loss allowance al an amount equal to lifetime expccted credit losses

The impairment provisions for trade receivables is based on reasonable and supportable information including historic loss rates, present developments
such as liquidity issues and information about future economic conditions, to ensure foreseeable changes in the customer-specific or macroeconomic

environment are considered

Financial liabilitics
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. In general, financial liabilities are classitied and
subsequently measured at amortized cost, with the exception of contingent considerations resulting from a business combination, non conirolling interes(s

subject to put provisions as well as derivative [inancial liabilities

Financial liabilitics subscquently measured at amortised cost

The carrying amounts of financial liabilitics that are subsequently measured al amortised cost are determined based on the effective inlerest method

Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the *Finance costs’ line item. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rale is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effcctive interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriale) a shorter period, to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition
Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the asscts of an entity after deducting all of ils liabilities Equity instruments
issued by a Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs Repurchase of the Company’s own equily instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity No gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Group’s own equily instruments
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derccognises [inancial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired An exchange
with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an
extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
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KERALA FIRSTHEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LINITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USSTIOKL200SPTCO 18434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2.14 Taxation
I'ax expense comprising cuirent tax and deferied tax are recognised in the Statement of Prolit and 1.oss Tor the year Current tax is the amount ol income

tax determined to be payable in respect of taxable income as computed under the tax laws

Certain items ol income and expenditure arc not reported in (ax returns and [inancial statements in the same period for the purposc ol determining the
cutrent tax. The net tax effect caleulated al the current enacled (ax rates ol this timing difference is reported as deferred income tax asset/liability  The
effect on delerred tax asscls and liabilities duc to change in such assets/labilitics as at the end of previous accounting period and due Lo a change in lax

rates are recognised in the income statement of the period
2.15 Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) after tax (including the post tax eflect of cxceptional items, il any) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the ycar The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year is number of
shares outstanding at the beginning of the year, adjusted by the number of ordinary shares issued during the year multiplied by a time-weighting factor

2.16 Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past even, it is probable that an oulflow of resources embodying

cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are nol
discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best estimale required 1o scttle the obligation at the reporting date These estimales are
revicwed at each reporling date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

2.17 Contingent liabilitics
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that ariscs from past events whose exislence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one

or more uncertain’ future evenlts beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannol
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial

statements

2.18 Borrowing cost
Borrowing cost includes interest and amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capilalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they

occur

2.19 Segment Reporting
In accordance with Ind AS 108, Segment Reporting, the Group’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM?) has been idenlified as the board of

directors The Group is engaged only in Healthcare business and therefore the Company’s CODM has decided to have only one reportable segment as at
the March 31, 2023, in accordance with IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”

2.20 Government Grants and Subsidies
Government grants and subsidies are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attached (o them and

the grants/ subsidies will be received When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis in the statement of
profit and loss over the years necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate Alternatively, they are deducted in
reporting the related expense. Where the grant or subsidy relates to depreciable assets are treated as deferred income which is recognised in the profit and
loss statement on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the asset. Such allocation to income is usually made over the periods and in the
proportions in which depreciation on related assets is charged. The deferred income is disclosed in the balance sheet as 'Deferred Government Grants'

pending its apportionment to statement of profit and loss

2.21 Recent pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated March 31, 2023 issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023

Some of the key amendments are given below:

Ind AS 1 : Companies shall disclose their matcrial accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting policies and accounting policies
related to immaterial transactions, other evenls or conditions which are themselves immaterial are not required to be disclosed. The said amendment is

effective from April 01, 2023

Ind AS 12: Amendment has made to narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption, i.e , it no longer applies to transactions thal, on initial
recognition, give rise to the equal taxable and deductible temporary differences The said amendment is effective from April 01, 2023

The Group is in the process of evalualing the eftect of the amendments on its financial statements
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KERALA FIRST HEALTIH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBLR (CIN):USSTIOKL200SP TCO18434

NOTLES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN
(AN Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands . except othenwise stated)

SFOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCI 31, 2023

2.22

Jul

U]

Effect/ Adjustments pursuant to adoption of Ind AS:

The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as nolilied by the Ministry of Corporate Allairs with effect ftom Apiil 01, 2022, with a
transition date o' April 01, 2021 “Lhesc financial statements for the year ended Maich 31.2023 are (he [itst [inancial statements the Company has prepared
under Ind AS. For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2022 | the Company prepared its financial stalements in accordance with the
accounting standards notificd under the section 133 of the Companics Act 2013, read the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021 ( Previous

GAAP)

The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standaids Ind AS 101 1equires that
all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are issued and effective for the fitst Ind AS financial statements be applied retrospectively and consistently for
all financial years presented Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS for year ended March 31, 2023,
together with the comparative information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022 and the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at Apiil 01, 2021, the date

of transition to Ind AS

In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance wilh Ind AS 101, as explained
below. The resulting difference between the carying values of (he assets and liabilities in the financial statements as al the transition date under Ind AS and
Previous GAAP have been recognised directly in cquity (retained earnings ot another appiopuiate category of equity) This note explains the adjustments
made by the Company in restating its financial statements prepared under previous GAAP, including the Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2021 and the

financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2022

The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising fiom the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS in

accordance with Ind AS 101:

Reconciliation of Equity as at April 01, 2021
A Reconciliation of Equity as at March 31, 2022

B Reconciliation of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows for the ycat ended March 31, 2022

Reconciliation of Equity as at April 01, 2021

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Right-of-Use Assets
(c) Other Inlangible assets
(d) Financial Assets
(1) Investments
(ii) Other financial assets
(¢) Income Tax Assct (Net)
(f) Other non-current assets

Current aysets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other financial assets
|(c) Other curient assets
Total of Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(b)Provisions
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
| (i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables

(b) Provisions
() Other current liabilities
Total of Equity and Liabilities

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of other creditors

[ Note Reference

C (i)
C (iii)
C (i)

C (iif)

[ cip

C (iii)

C(iv)

€ (iii)

C (iii)

Previous
IGAAP
3,884 39

31459

5,579.08
4,188 04

2,850.46

9,552.99
583.50

524 81
551.97
28,029.83 |

4,364.34
(47,685 92)

35,294.19

1,387 42

7,705.58

14,341 23

1,581.96
11,041 02
28,029.83 |

I H<BAN
II \ w~ A h

\

Lifects of
transition

28,274 10

(1,223 90)

780.39

35243
28.183.02 |

(3,204 34)

000
24,060.09
(0.00)

7,327.27

28,183.03

w

*
GALORE/ ¢

Ind AS

3,884 39
28,274 10
31459

435518
4,188 04
780.39

2,850 46

9,552.99
583.50
524.81
904.40

56,212.85

4,364 34
(50,890 25)

35,294.19
24,060.09
1,387.42

7,705.58
7,327.27

14,341.23

1,581.96
11.041.02 |
56.212.85 |
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IKERALA FIRST HHEALTII SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN): U851 10KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands . except otherwise stated)

2.22  Effect/ Adjustments pursuant to adoption of Ind AS:

an

A Reconeiliation of Eguity as at March 31, 2022:

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current assefs
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Right-of-Use Assets
(c) Other Intangible assets
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(i1) Other financial assets
(e) Income Tax Asset (Net)
(f) Other non-current assets

Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

Total of Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(b) Provisions
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables

(b) Provisions
(c) Other current liabilities
| Total of Equity and Liabilities

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Note
Ref.

cw
C (iii)
C

C (iii)

C (iii)

C (iii)

C (iv)

C (iii)

C (i)

Previous
1GAAP

3,243 .65
41728

5,607 49
2,845 46

2,72885

12,125.89
377.67
622 98

6,651.41

34,620.68

4,364.34
(55,086.81)

11,471.41

2,611 44

33,470 14

18,537.16

19274
19,06027 |
34,620.68 |

Effects of

transition

(3187)
19,758 36
46 94

|
(885 46)

39512

38526 |
19.668.35 |

(4,391.74)

19,081.52

497857 |

=)
19.668.35 |

Ind AS

321178 |
19,758 36
46422 |

4,722 03 ‘
2,845 46
39512 |

2,728.85

12,125 89
377.67
622 98

7.036.67

54,289.03

4,364.34
(59,478 55)

11,471 41
19,081.52
2,61144

33,470.14
4978 56

18,537.16 |
192.74

19,060.27
54,289.03
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CORPORATE 1D
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMEN
(AN Amonnts i Indian Rupees 1t thonsands  except otherwise stated)

FITY NUMBER (CIN):USSTTOKL2005P TCO18434
'S FOR TIE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

2.22

Effect/ Adjustments pursuant to adoption of Ind AS:

oy B, Reconcilintion of Sttenent of Profic and Loss Tor the year anded Maeh 31, 2022

(vn

(A

Rat%

Particulars Note Previous Effects of Ind AS
Rel. IGAAP | transition | |
|
Revenue from continuing operations 77,793 25 77.793 25
Other income (il | 58271 33843 921 14 |
Total Income 78,375.96 338.43 78,714.39
|
iExpcnscs:
|Cost of materials consumed 83216 . 83216
Purchase of stock in trade | 5348 14 - 5,348 14
Changes in inventoties ol stock-in-trade | 121 60 - 121 60
Employee benefits expense C(ii) 36,930 68 244 35 37,17503
Finance costs C(ii) ‘ 2,916 24 2,360 23 5,276 47
Depreciation and amortisation expense C(iii) 1,121 84 8,500 .66 9,622 50
Other expenses i) 38,506 20 (9.335.06) 29171 14
F'otal expenses 85,776.86 1,770.18 87,547.04
Profit/(loss) before tax expense (7,400.90) (1,431.75) | (8,832.65)

Income tax expense
Clirrent tax

Deferred tax

Total tax expense | E
Profit/(loss) after tax for the year ‘ (7,400.90) (1,431.75) (8,832.65)
Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Ttems that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss [

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Gratuity) C(ii) - 24436 244 36
Other Comprehensive Income - 244.36 244.36 |
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ! (7.400.90)| (1.187.39)| (8.588.29)!
Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2023

There were no matetial differences between the Statement of Cash Flows presciitid under Ind AS and the Previous GAAP The details are jiven below:

. IGAAP Effects of | Ind AS
Particulars oo
transiiion |

Cash fiom operating activities 1,075 83 9,376 83 10,452 66
Cash fiom investing activities (31500 (470 68) (78371}
|Cash from financing activitics (968,57) (5,900, 15) (9.874.73)|

Optional Exemptions from retrospective application

Dcemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Company has elected to incasure all its propetty, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost
on the date of tiansition to Ind AS

Investment in equity

Shares of subsidiaries:

The Company has elected this exemption and opted to continue with the carrying value of investment in subsidiaries under the previous GAAP, as deemed
cost at the date of transition

Mandatory Exceptions from retrospective application

The Company has applied the following exceptions to the retrospective application of Ind AS as mandatorily required under

Usc of estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the

estimates under Ind AS, as there is no objective evidence of an error in those estimates However, estimates that were required under Ind AS but not
requited under Previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date
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KERALA FIRST HEALTII SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL2005P TC018434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF TIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIHI 31, 2023

(AN Amonnts in Inchan Rupees i thousands _except otherwise stated)

2.22  Effect/ Adjustments pursuant to adoption of Ind AS:
C. Other notes on First time adoption of Ind-AS

i.  Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
The Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets at the previous GAAP carrying amount i e March 31,2021
as its deemed cost (Net Block Value) on the date of tiansition to Ind AS ie April 01, 2021 The Company has opted to provide for the depieciation of
stiaight line basis as compaied to wiitten down value basis under previous GAAP The movement in carrying value of property, plant and equipment and
Intangible Assets as per [GAAP is mentioned Note 3

ii.  Defined benefit obligation
Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Company tecognized costs 1¢elated to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis. Under Indian
GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss Under Ind AS, re-measurements comprising of
actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a conesponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI, net of

taxes, if any

iii. Lease liability & Right of use asset
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach as at the date of transition, with the cumulative effect of initial application

of this Standard are recognised as an adjustment to the retained earnings The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments thal ate not paid at the commencement date of the lease with corresponding debit to Right of use asset The lease payments are discounted using
incremental borrowing rate Accordingly, the finance cost is charged to statement of profit & loss The interest-free refundable secutity deposit recorded at
their transaction value as at the date of transition are now recognized at their fair value. Accordingly, the difference between the fair value and transaction
value of the said security deposit has been recognized as Right to use asset (ROUA) and these ROUA are depreciated over the lease tenn, and the finance
income on security deposit is recognised in the statement of profit & loss Consequently, tax adjustments, if any , arising on account of above have been
recognised in the financial statements

iv. Other Equity
Adjustments to the retained eamings and other comprehensive income have been made in accordance with Ind AS for the items mentioned in Note B(i) ,

B(ii) and B(iii) As per Ind AS 19, actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income as compared to being recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss under IGAAP

v. Others
Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to confinm to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note

This space has been intentionally left blank
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USSTTOKL200SPTCO 18434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023

(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands , except otherwise stated)

Property , Plant and Equipment and intangible Assets

3A. Property , Plant Furniture and

and Equipment

Gross block (at Deemed Cost)

As at April 01, 2021
Additions

Disposals/ Adjustments
As at March 31, 2022
Additions

Disposals/ Adjustments
As at March 31, 2023

Depreciation Block

As at April 01, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2022

Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2023

Net Block (WDV)

As at April 01, 2021
As at March 31, 2022

Office Computers Medical Vehicles Electrical Leasehold Total
Fixtures Equipment equipment Fittingys Improvements

721.10 416.96 154.83 904.39 0.45 19.06 1,667.62 3,884.39
126 35 46.12 107 58 £ 280.05
721.10 543.31 200.93 1,011.95 0.45 19.06 1,667.62 4,164.44
77.57 480 84 52259 18 87 1,149 02 2,248.88
= 798.67 1,024.14 723.53 1,030.83 0.45 19.06 2,816.64 6,413.33
95.03 126.09 4199 12535 423 55998 952.67
95.03 126.09 41.99 125,35 4.23 §59.98 952.67
8909 304 54 96 37 108 82 217 614 42 1,215 40
184.13 430.63 138.36 234.17 6.39 1,174.40 2,168.07
72110 416,96 154.83 904 39 045 19.06 1,667 62 3,884 .39
626.06 417.22 158 95 886 61 045 1483 1,107 64 321178
614.54 §93.52 585.17 796.66 0.45 12.66 1,642.24 4,245.26

As at March 31, 2023

3B. Right of use asset (ROUA)

Gross Block

As at April 01, 2021
Additions

Disposals/ Adjustments
As at March 31, 2022
Additions

Disposals/ Adjustments
As at March 31, 2023

Accumulated amortisation

As at April 01, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at Mareh 31, 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2023

Net Block (WDV)

As at April 01, 2021
As at March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2023

Right of use
asset
28,274 10

28,274.10
31,608.63

59,882.73

8,51574

8,515.74
9,813 85

1832958
28,274.10

19,758.36
41,553.14

Note: The Company had adopted Ind AS 116 on "Leases”, effective annual reporting period beginning April 01, 2021 and applied the standard to its leases, using
the modified retrospective approach, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the said standard, recognised in the retained earnings as of April 01, 202]

This had resulted in recognising a right-of-use assct of ¥ 28,274 10 thousand and a corresponding lease liability of ¥ 31,387 36 thousand by adjusling difterential
impact to retained earnings to the extent of ¥ 3,113.26 thousand as at April 01, 2021. The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 8.40% was applied to

lease liabilities recognised in the balance sheet at the date of initial application
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KERALA FIRST HEALTII SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN): U851 10KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCI 3(, 2023

(Il Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands . except otherwise stated)

Break up of current and non-current lease liabilities

Particulars | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 :April 01,2021
Current lease liabilities | 11.53864 | 4.978 56 732727 |
Non-current lease liabilities 3502916 | 19,081 52 | 24,060 09
Total 46,567.80 24.060.09 31.387.36

Reconciliation of lcave liabilities

| Particulars |March 31,2023 |March 31,2022
|Balance at the beginning of the year I 2406009 | 31,387 36
|Addition during the year | 31,491 79 ‘ A
|Accretion of Interests ! 2,934.13 2.360.23

| Payment of lease liabilities | 11.918 20 ‘ 9.687.50 |
Balance at the end of the year | 46,567.80 24,060.09 |
Amounts Recognised in statement of Profit and loss is as under:
Particulars [March 31,2023 iMarch 31,2022
Depreciation on Right of use assets 9.813.85 | 851574
Interest accretion on lease liabilities 293413 | 2,360.23
Total 12,747.97 10.875.97

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted cash flows basis:

|Particulars [March 31,2023 |March 31,2022
Not later than one year 11,538.64 4,978 56
Later than one year and not later than five 34,648 94 19,081.52
|vears

Later than five years 380.22 | -
Total | 46,567.80 | 24,060.09

3C. Other Intangible Assets
Gross block (at Deemed Cost)

As at April 01, 2021
Additions

Disposals/ Deletions
As at March 31, 2022
Additions

Disposals/ Deletions
As at March 31, 2023

Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals

As at March 31, 2022
Charge for the period
Disposals

As at March 31,2023

Net Block (WDYV)

As at April 01, 2021
As at March 31, 2022
As at March 31, 2023

Computer

Software
314.59
30373

618.32
1,027.31

) 1,645.62

154.09

154.09
340.23

494.32

314,59
464,22
1,151.30

& B,
T,

/.

/Y, 2\
1 F\
. lIBANGALORE)
\Z\ _
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KERALA FIRST HEALTII SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL200SPTCO18434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All Amonnts in Indian Rupees in thousands _except othenvise stated)

3D. Intangible assets under development

(i) Website development and customer engagement platform
As at April 01, 2021

Additions during the year

Capitalised during the year

As at March 31, 2022 :
8,026 26

Additions during the year
Capitalised during the year
8,026.26

As at March 31,2023

Ageing of Intangible Assets under development as on March 31, 2023

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of
<1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years >3 Years  Total
Projects in Progress 8,026 26 - - 8,026.26
Projects temporarily
suspended = - - -
Total 8,026.26 - - - 8,026.26

Note: There were no outstanding Capital Work In Progress as at March 31, 2022 and April 01,2021

Other notes to Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) During the last five years ended March 31, 2023, there was no write off cf any of the Property, Plant and equipment or intangible assets due to reduction of

capital or due to revaluation
(b) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible assets or Right of Use Asset during the year
(c) There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,1988 and

rules made thereunder
(d) The Company does not own any immovable property in its name
(e) The Company does not have any intangible assets under development other than disclosed above.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LINOTED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USS1TOKL2005PTC018434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCIH 31, 2023
(Al Amonnts in Indian Rupees in thousands | except othervise stated)

4

6.

—_

'Total(A)

Income Tax Asset (Net)

Tax Deducted al Source
Total

Inventories

(Carried at lower of Cost and net realisable value)
Stock in Trade - Pharmacy items

Total

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
April 01, 2021

3420.22 284540 4, B804
3,420.22 2,845.46 4,188.04
As at As at As at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

April 01, 2021

Note: Inventories are valued at the tower of cost and nel realisable value. Cost is computed on a Firsl-In- First-Out (FIFO) basis

Trade receivables

Unsecured
(a) Considered Good

Less: Expecled Credit Loss on above

(b) Credit impaired

Less: Expected Credit Loss on above

Total

Trade receivables ageing schedule

Ageing schedule for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Undisputed-Considered Good

'Undisputed—Crchl mpaired

Disputed-Considered Good

Disputed-Credit ImBai_rea

Net trade receivable (A-B)

Particulars

Undisputed-Significant Increase in Credit Risk

Disputed-Significant Increase in Credit Risk

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (B)

Less than 6 | 6 months

months

14,596 11

(7,697 66)| (1,121 48)

1 14,596.11

(7.697.66)

14,596.11
(7.697.66)

to 1 year
39344

|

-

- |
393.44 |
(1,121.48)
(47.93)

345.51

3,529 26 2,728 85 2,850 46
3,529.26 2,728.85 2,850.46
As at As at As at
March 31,2023 Muarch 31,2022 April 01, 2021
19,980.83 12,125 89 9,552.99
(621.53) - -
1,397.67 795.38 44626
(1,397.67) (795.38) (446.26)
19,359.30 12,125.89 9,552.99
Outstanding for following periods from duc date of payment
1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
vears |
3,124 75 1,171.52 69501 19,980.83
(1,605 07) (1,661.60) (40.08) (12,125.89)
N | =
= ! - |
139767 | 1,397.67 |
. (795.38)| (795.38)|
| ; -
3,124.75 1,171.52 2,092.68 21,378.51
(1,605.07) (1,661.60) (835.46) (12,921.27)
(247.16) (326.44) (1,397.67) (2,019.21)
- - (795.38) (795.38)
2,877.59 845.08 695.01 19,359.30
(1,605.07)]  (1.661.60)| (40.08) (12,125.89)

(1,121.48)

Note: There are no debts due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by

firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF TIHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands , except otherwise stated)

7 Cash and cash cquivalents

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
April 01, 2021

Cash on hand * 183 32 86 53 78 55
Balances held with banks
- In Current Accounls 17,070 61 291 14 504 95
- In Deposit Accounts 27,756 64 - -
TOTAL 45,010.57 377.67 583.50
* Includes balances in wallets held with third party vendor

8 Other financial asscts As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at April 01, 2021
(Unsecured, considered good) Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Security Deposits 4,854 94 434 87 3,771 85 33900 3,629 22 43132
Other Bank Balances * 74555 - 709.60 - 485 38 -
Interest accrued on bank deposits - 2809 - 988 - 024
Recoverables from related party ** - 4,506 68 - 4,286 08 - 4,10524
Less: Provision for recoverables - (4,011.98) - (4,01198) - (4,011 98)
Other deposit 240.58 - 240.58 - 240.58 -
TOTAL 5,841.06 957.65 4,722.03 22,98 4,355.18 524.81

* Balances held with banks in deposit account as margin money for issue of bank guarantee tacility. The deposits are expected to be renewed on their
maturity and accordgingly, classified as non-current under 'Other Bank Balances' which is considered appropriate by the Management The fair value of

interest bearing fixed deposits approximates to their carrying amounts. Also Refer Note 28.2(b)

** Recoverables from related party includes certain advances that are due for long period, the Company on a conservative basis and as a matter of abundant

caution has made provision to the extent considered doubtful, which is considered appropriate

9 Other Assets As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

As at April 01, 2021

(Unsecured, considered good) Non-Current Current Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Prepaid expenses - 786 68 - 201 09 - 31383
Prepaid lease rentals 1,080.01 444 29 395.12 385.27 780.39 35244
Advances to employees - 47 01 - 42533 - 102 47
Advance to suppliers - 30183 - 128 03 - 13567
Unbilled revenue - 4.780.20 5,896 96 - -
TOTAL 1,080.01 6,360.01 395.12 7,036.67 780.39 904.40

This space has been intentionally left blank
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):USS1TOKL2005PTCO 18434
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(AN Amomnts in g Ripees in thousands | except otherwise statedd)

10 Equity Share Capital As at As at As at
_March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

Authorised
8.000 00 5,000 00 5 000 00

800,000 Lquity Shares (March 31, 2022: 500,000, April 01, 2021: 500,000) ol Rs 10 cach
Issucd, Subscribed & Paid Up
626,494 Equity Shares (March 31, 2022: 436,434 Equity Shares, April 01, 2021: 436,434 6,264 94 4,364 34 4.364 34

Equily Shares) of Rs 10 cach

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each ~ March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
No. of Shares No. of Shares
Number of Shares at the Beginning 436,434 436,434
Shares issued duting the year 190,060 -
Number of Shares at the end 626,494 436,434

b. Details of equity shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of the Share holders As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of Shares % Holding No. of Skares % Ilolding

Apollo Hospitals Enterpriscs Limited (Parent Company) 375,896 60.00% - 0.00%
Rajiv Vasudevan (Promoter) 204,105 32.58% 176,678 40 48%
Kalmatia Sangam Travels Private Limited 31,325 5.00% 84,781 19.43%
Acumen Fund, Inc - - 48,968 1122%
Niranjan Gopinath Rao 31.235 7. 16%

611,326 97.58% 341,662 78.28%

¢.  Details of sharcholdings by the Promoters of the Company
Promoter name As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 % Change during
No. of Shares % Ilolding No. of Shares % Holding the vear

Rajiv Vasudevan 204,105 32.58% 176,678 40 48% -7 90%

d.  Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only onc class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assels of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The balance assets available for the distribution amongst shareholders shall (subject to the rights of members in respect of shares
which conler special rights) be divided between the shareholders in proportion to the amounts paid upon the shares held by them respectively

e.  Notes on share capital :
(i.) As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding

beneficial interest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares

(ii ) There are no shares that have been issued, subscribed and not fully paid up

(iii.) There are no forfeited shares.

(iv.) There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/ commitments for the sale of shares/ disinvestment.

. During the previous five years at the balance shect date.
(i) No shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash
(ii) No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares
(iif) No shares were bought back

g.  The Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the approval of the members at their Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on October 14, 2022 have
accorded to issue 1,90,060 shares of Rs 10 cach at a premium of Rs 700.30 per share in accordance lo the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with rules made thereunder on preferential basis through private placements to Apollo Hospitals Enterprises Limiled ("Apollo"). The share price for these
purposes have been valued by the registered valuer. Further, through a separate share purchase arrangement with the existing shareholders, Apollo has
acquired 1,85,836 shares of Rs. 10 each from (he existing shareholders of the Company oblaining the controlling stake in the Company The funds raised
from private placement of the shares of the Company were utilised for the general business purposes (immediate working capital and long-term funding
requirements of the business) as there were no specified conditions
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands . except otherwise stated)

11 Other Equity As at As at As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022 April 01,2021
Retained Eamings (2,09,403.74) (1,93,891.11) (1,85,058.46)
Securities Premium 2,66,721.00 1,33,621.98 1,33,621.98
Other items of Other Comprehensive Income 944.41 790.58 S406,23
58,261.67 (59,478.55) (S0,8910.25)

11.1 Retained Earnlngs

Balance at the beginning of the year (1,93,891.11) (1,85,058.46) (1,71,699.86)
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year (15,512.63) (8,832.65) (13,358.60)
Balance at ¢nd of the Perlod (2,09,403.74) (1,93,891.11) (1,85,058.46)

Retained Earnings: Retained carnings are the profits/losses that the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to sharehoiders.

11.2 Securlties Premium Account

Balance at the beginning of the Perlod 1,33,621.98 1,33,621.98 1,33,621.98
Premium on issue of equity shares 1,33,099.02 - -
Balance at end of the Perlod 2,66,721.00 1,33,621.98 1,33,621.98

Securlties Premium Account: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securilies Premium. The application of
securities premium account is govermed by provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act, 2013

11.3 Other ftems of Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations . 244.36 546.22
Balance at beginning of the period 790.58 546.22 -
Re-measurement gains/(losses) (net of tax affect) 153.83 - -
Balance at end of the period 944.41 790.58 546,22

Remeasurements of Defined Benefit Obligatlon: Any changes in the liabilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience
adjustments within the plans, are recognised in other comprehensive income.

11.4  The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2022. Hence the provisions of
section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands , except otherwise stated)

12 Borrowings As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 As at April 01,2021
Non Current Current Non Current Current Non Current Current

12,1 Secured Loan
Term Loan
Others - Inter- corporate Loan = - - 29,781.14 25,000.00 2,981.14
Others - - - 1,257.33 377719 -

- - - 31,038.47 25,377.79 2,981.14

12.2  Other Notes on Secured Term Loans

a.  During the financial ycar 2019-20, the Company has taken loan from a Kalmatia Sangam Travels Private Limited (KSTPL) to meet working capital
requirements which has bullet payment and was due on March 31, 2022. The said loan carried an interest rate of 8% per annum and was secuted by pari
passu hypothecated assets. There were no continuing default as at March 31, 2023. (Refer Note 12.2.c below for details of defaults)

b.  During the financiat year 2019-20, the Company has taken loan from a UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited (UCIC) to meet its working capital requirements
which is repayable in 30 monthly instalments commencing on November 1, 2019 and ending on April 1, 2022. The loan carried as interest rate of 17.3% per
annum and is secured by hypothecation of all movable and immovable propertics including inventories of the Company. There were no continuing default as
at March 31, 2023. (Refer Note 12.2.c below for details of defaults)

c.  Details of defaults in repayment above term Loan as ot March 31,2023: o
Name of Borrower Nature of Amount not paid | Delays (In days) |

payment on due dote |
UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited Interest 7.81 ] 60
UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited Interest 5.24 115
UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited Interest 2.64 84
UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited - Interest 26.47 24
UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited Principal 65.59 266
UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited Principal | 189.49 181
UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited - Principal 192.22 181
UC Inelusive Credit Private Limited Principal 194,99 174
LIC Inelusive Credit Private Limited Principal 197.80 143
UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited - Principal 200.65 115
|UC Inclusive Credit Private Limited _| Principal 203.54 84
Kalmatia Sangam Travels Private Limited Principal 25.000.00 _2_5_3
Kalmatia Sangam Travels Private Limited Interest 3,737.85| 25310 1012 davs
Kalmatia Sangam Travels Private Limited Interest 1.041.26 | 1408 days
Kalmatia Sangam Travels Private Limited Interest 1.200.00 | 9 10 252 days|

d. During the financial year 2022-23, the Company has availed loan of Rs.2,000 thousand from Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited repayable in 4 months
from the date of the loan and carry a interest rate of 8% per annum. This loan was availed for the purpose of funding specific capital expenses and
operational expenses and was sccured by pledge of 65,000 shares owned by the Managing Dircctor of the Company. The said loan was settled during the
year and there were no outstanding and continuing default as at the balance sheet date.

12.3 Unsecured loan: As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 As at Aprll 01, 2021
:;::‘?::nd Advances from related Non Current Current Non Current Current Non Current Current
From Director - . 1,039.93 - 1,039.93 1,957.08
From Managing Director * = 4,260.52 10,431.48 2.431.67 8.876.48 2,767.36

- 4,260.52 11,471.41 2,431.67 9,916.41 4,724.44
Total - 4,260.52 11,471.41 33,470.14 35,294.19 7,705.58

* Unsecured non-interest bearing Loan from Managing Director of Rs.4,260.52 thousand does not have stipulated repayment schedule and accordingly

classificd as current,
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(Al Amionnis in Indian Rupees in thowsands , except otherwise stated)

13 Lease llabilities As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 As at April 01, 2021
Non Current Current Non Current Current Nou Current Current
Leuse Liabilities 35,029.16 11,538.64 19,081.52 4,978.56 24,060.09 7,327.27
Total 35,029.16 11,538.64 19,081.52 4,978.56 24,060.09 7,327.27
14  Provisions As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31,2022 As at April 01,2021
Non Current Current Non Current Current Non Current Current
Provision for Gratuity 2,980.39 319.55 2,611.44 192.74 1,387.42 1,077.71
Provision for Income tax - - - - . 504.25
Total 2,980.39 319.55 2,611.44 192.74 1,387.42 1,581.96
15 Trade Payables As at As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises L = -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 8,791.32 18,537.16 14,341.23
TOTAL 8.791.32 18,537.16 14,341.23
15.1 The Company has not obtained the confirmations trom the supplicrs that they are registered as micro, small or medium enterprises under The Micro Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2006 as at March 31, 2023 and as at March 31, 2022, Accordingly, no disclosures are made (his regard.
15.2 Trade Puyables ageing schedule ns at March 31, 2023 und as ut March 31, 2022 N .
Particulars Not due Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
. year =i
Undisputed dues- MSME B . - = -
Undisputed dues - Others 472.48|  7,557.68 277.08 265.41 218.67 8,791.32
(438.40) (14,816.00) (1,233.36) (1,302.47) (746.93) (18,537.16)
Disputed ducs - MSME - - - - -
Dispulted dues - Others . ENE - - = -
Total 47248 7,557.68 277.08 265.41 218.67 8,791.32
(438.40)|  (14,816.00)|  (1233.36)] (130247 (746.93)| (18.537.16)[
* Amounts in parenthesis relates to previous year
16 Other Current Liabilities As at As at As at

Advances from customers
Statutory Liabilitics
Employee Payables
TOTAL

*Includes dues to Managing Dircctor

March 31, 21123

March 31, 2022

April 01, 2021

1,387.60 1,305.88 1,067.08
L1511 2,921.16 1,330.87
10,585.13 14,833.23 #,6:41,08
13,087.85 19,0600.27 11,041.02
1,471.02 4,291.61 2,727.64

Page 23 of 31
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CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
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17

18

19

20

21

Revenue from Operations

Hospital services*
Pharmacy receipts
Other operating revenue
Total

* net of discounts and share of revenue.

Other Income

Interest on fixed deposits

Interest on income tax refund

Interest on security deposit measured at amortised cost
Balances/ Provision no longer payable, now written back
Other non-operating income

Total

Changes In Inventories of Stock-In-Trade

Opening Stock
Less: Closing stock
Total

Employee benefit expense

Salary, allowances and bonus
Contributions to provident fund
Contributions to ESI

Gratuity expenses

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance Costs

Interest on term loans

Interest on directors loan

Loan processing charges

Interest on delayed remittance of taxes
Interest on finance leasc*

Total

* Includes interest payment towards delay in remittance of lease rentals Rs.236.02 thousand (Year ended March 31,2022: Nil).

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the ycar ended
March 31, 2022

83,751.67 67,464.06
11,118.90 7,087.56
1,841.77 3.241.63
96,712.34 17,793.25
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
380.02 33.86
98.90 236.82
364.65 338.42
1.48 271.88
- 40.16
845.05 921.14

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,728.85 2,850.45
3,529.26 2.728.85
(800.41) 121.60
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
41,082.92 31,510.47
755.45 703.72
89.05 103.51
744.79 583.40
5.110.20 4,273.94
47,762,410 37,175.03

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,228.71 2,359.87
12.62 107.56
- 5.90
378.70 44291
3,170.15 2,360.23
5,790,148 5,276.:47
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22

22.1

Other expenses

Consultant charges

Hospital/Office Maintenance charges
Electricity charges

Canteen expenses

Professional charges (for auditor's remuneration refer 22.1 below)

Advertisement and sales promolion
Lab charges
Rent
Rates and taxes
Communicalion expenses
Printing & stationery
Repairs and maintenance

Plant and machinery

Buildings
Repairs and maintenance - Others
Security charges
Software Expenses
Bank charges
Travel and conveyance
Provision for doubtful advances
Expected credit loss on trade receivabies
Quality certification expenses
Membership & Subscription charges
Taxes deducted no longer recoverable now written off
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Auditors' Remuneratlon

a) As auditor

b) Tax audit fee

c) Taxation services

d) Other Certification Services
) Reimbursement of expenses

This space has been intentionally left blank

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

10,405.25 9,280.60
4,396.45 3,847.07
2,818.65 1,877.81
3,025.88 4,437.07
4,040.12 1,234.76
6,501.88 2,759.71
4827 36.29
1,025.91 835.32
510,72 115.99
912.29 747.88
289.47 162.20
326.85 157.77
154.31 58.93
606.03 418.77
540.85 740.63
567.66 141.26
653.45 624.89
1,440.21 484.59
1,223.83 349.12
623,64 264.89
176.04 153.10

372.71 -
530.28 442.48
41,190.75 29,071,014
472.48 279.50
- 55.00
3244
- 70.00
- 1.46
472.48 438.40
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CORPORATE IPENTITY NUMBER (CIN): U851 10KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in thousands , except otherwise stated}

23 Related Party Disclosures

a. Related pnrtics of the Giroup are ay follows:

Name of the Related Parly Nature of relatlonship

Apollo Hospitals Enterprise Limited Holding Company (w.e.f December 02, 2022)

Mr. Rajiv Vasudevan - Managing Dircctor Key M: ial Personnel ("KMP") -

Mrs. Ammini Vasudevan — Relative of Key Managerial Personnel (Dircctor upto December 02,2022 )

Krishnan Akhileswaran Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP™ (w.e.f December 02, 2022)

Avurvaid Discovery Foundalion Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their relatives

b. Related Pariy Tr ons turing the Year: =
Name of the Related Party Nature of transactions For the year ended For the year eaded
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Apollo Hospital Enterprise Limited |Issue of Equity shares® | ) 1.34.999.62 -

Mr. Rajiv Vasudevan |Loans taken during the year 11.36 2,131.80
Loans repaid during the year 8,613.98 480.00
Interest on Loan 12.62 107.56
Remuneration 3,000.00 | 1,887.74
Reimbursement for expenses 63.06 4.60
Sale of Pharmacy Products 6.82 10.20
Hospital services rendered 6.60 6.95

Mrs. Ammini Vasudevan Loans repaid during the ycar 1,039.93 -
Hospilal services rendered 132.22 7.72
Salc of Pharmacy Producls 16.24 0.22

Ayurvaid Discovery Foundation  |Advances given 220.60 180.84 |

* Equity share of Rs.10 each at a premium of Rs. 700.30 per share. Also Refer Note 10.

¢ Hal nutstnnding oy ot end of the year:
Name of the Related Party Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Mr. Rajiv Vasudevan Loan e 4,260.52 12,863.15
Remuneration Payable 1,443.76 3,558.30
Remmbursoment for expense (Payable) 27.27 733.31

Ayurvaid Discovery Foundation  [Advances given®* 4,506.68 B 4,286.08

*Against this Company has madc provisions of Rs.4,01 194 thousarids

Note:

a. The respective Companies in the Group has not cntered into any non-cash transactions with its directors and persons connected with its dircctors pursuant to
Scclion 192 of Companies Act,2013

b. The respective Companies in the Company has not given any loans or advances in the nature of loans to any of its promoters, directors or related parties

24 Most of the account balances of trade receivables, advances and trade payables other than subsidiary are subject to confirmation. In the opinion of the management,
none of the assets including investment in subsidiaries have a value less than what is stated in the accounts if realised in the ordinary course of business.

25 Earnings Per Equity Share For the year ¢nded For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Earnings Per Share has been computed as under:
Loss for the ycar (15.512.63) (8.832.65)
Weighted average number of cquily shares outstanding during the year 4,99,787 4,36,434
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Basic & Diluted (Face value of Ry. 10 per sharc) (31.04) (20.24)
26 Additional Information In respect of prepurntion of Consolidated Flnnnelnl Statements pursunnt to Sehedube 11 to the Act:
Sl Name of the entity | Net Asscts Share in profit/loss Share in other Share in total
No IR comprehensive Income comprehensive [neome
As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount
consolidated consolidated cousolidated consolidated
_net assets net assets | __net assets | | netassets |
A _|Parent entity N Il
Kerala First Heallh Services 101%|  64,909.44 101%| (15,594.91) 100% 153.83 101% (15,441.08)
Private Limited | 99% (54,649.10) 99% (8,775.06) 100% 244.36 99% (8,530.70)
B _|Indian Subsldiarics L B
Baalyam Healthcare Private -1% (559.93) 1% (194.82) 0% - 1% (194 82)
Limited i 1% (365.11) 1% (57.59) 0% - 1% (57.59)
C | Intcrcompany climinalion 177.10 277.10 - 277.10
and consolidation (100.00) P
TOTAL 64,526.61 (15,512.63) 153.83 (15,358,80)
(55,114.21) (8,832.65) 244.36 (8.588.29)

Nole: Amounts in Italics represents previous year,
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KERALA FIRST HEALTH SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED

CORPORATE IDENTITY NUMBER (CIN):U85110KL2005PTC018434

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCII 31, 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in thausands , except otherwise stated)

As at [ As at
27 Contingent liability and Capital commItments

27.1 Contingent ilabllity
Demand as per TRACES portal of Income lax website in respect of which company is in the process of filing nccessary 525.06
rectificalions,

27.2 Commitments
2. The estimated amount of contracts remaining lo be excculed on capital account (net of advances) is Rs. Nil (March 31, 2022: Nil)
b.  The Company has furnished Bank Guarantec of Rs. 600.00 thousand (March 31, 2022 : 600.00 thousand) to Central Government Health Scheme. This [acilly [rom
bank is scoured by the deposits of the Company held with as Margin money. (Also, Refer Nolc 8)

28 In view of losses during the year, the Management of the Company, based of prevalent fax laws applicable to the Company docs not cstimate any tax liability.
Accordingly, no provisions are made towards tax expenses during the year,

29 Employee benefits

29.1 Defined contribution plans
The Company makes contiibutions towards provident fund and employees state insurance as a defined contribution retirement benefit tund for qualilying employees.
The provident fund is operated by the regional provident fund commissioner. The amount recognised as expense towards contribution to provident fund amount was
Rs.755.45 thouand (March 31,2022 : Rs.703.72 thousand). The Employee state insurance is operated by the Employee State Insurance corporation. Under these
schemes, the Company is required to conlribute a specific percentage of the payroll cost as per the statule. The amount recognised as expense towards contribulion to
Employee State Insurance was Rs.89.05 thouand (March 31,2022 : Rs.103.5] thousand). The Company has no further obligations in regard of these contribution

29.2

plans

Defined benefit plans : Gratulty

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan wherein every employee huving completed five years o more yeurs of continuous service is entitled to gratuily on
departure. The Company accrues for gratuity at 15 days basic salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service as per the provisions of the Payment of

Gratuity Act, 1972, The scheme is unfunded.

The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plon, is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent

acluary using the projected unit credit method.

Disclosures of Defined Benefit Plans based on actuarial valuation reports

The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method

A, Change in Defined Benefit Obligation For the year ended For the year ended
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 2,804.17 2,465.14
Current service cost 548.22 417.39
Inlerest cost 196.57 165.90
Remeasurement (gains)/losses on account of change in acluarial assumptions {153 83) (244 26)
Present value of deflned benefit obllgation as at the end of the year 3,395.13 2,804.17

For the year ended For the year ended

b. Expenscs recognlsed in statement of profit and loss Murch 31, 20123 Miurch 31, 2022
Currenl service cost 548.22 41739
Pasl service cost and (gain)/loss from sctllements - -
Net interest expense 196.57 165.90
Total Exp (L ) recognised in profit and loss* 744.79 583.30

For the year ¢nded For the year ended

¢. Expenses recognised In Other Comprehensive Income March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Acluarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in actuarial assumplions {29.52) (32 (1(_))
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience adjustments (124.31) (211.66)
Total of remeasurement (gain)/loss recognlsed in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (153.83) (244.26)
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30

30.

For the ycar ended For the year ended
Significant Actuariul Assumptions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount ratc(s) 7.22% 7.01%
Expecled rate(s) of salary increase 5% 5%
Attrition Rate 15% 15%
Retirement Age 58 58
Pre-retirement mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortality Indian Assured Lives Mortalily
(2012-14) Ullimate (2012-14) Ultimute
Sensitivity Analysls
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
bhenefit obligation by the amounts shown below:
Projected benefit obligation on current lons March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 __Aprli01,2021
Defined beneflt obligatiny]  Defined benefit obllgation | Defined benelit obligation
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate { | % movement) (134.69) 151.24 (112.51) 126.96 (91.89) 103.76
Future salary growth {1% movement) 142,44 (128.54) 120.02 (107.84) 98.02 (88.08)
Attrition rate (1% movement) 3.88 (5200 1.03 (2.06) (337 2.76
Maturity profile of deflned benefit plan:
Projecled benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
March 31,2023 _ March 31, 2022 Aprll 01, 2021
DI d |undi ted| DI ted 1l ted Di 1 i ted
Partlculars
values / values/ values/ values / Actual |values/Present| values / Actunl
Present value| Actual value |Present value value value value
Within 1 year 319.55 33145 192.74 20278 | 1,064.06| 105600
1-2 vear i 203.05 229.39 175.52 196.34 114.26 | 128.05
2-3 year ] 168.61 | 204.24 131.89 158.90 106.70 126.63
3-4 year - 231.90 292.65 108.32 139.65 78.27 99.93
4-5 year 13383 | 18637 170.64 227.64 10893 144.64
5-10 years 478.05 780.62 415.53 68432 36276 | 57541
Thereafler 1.860.14 3.070.55 1,609.54 2.586.60 630.16 140658
Weighted average nssumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost
Partlculars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Tolal Number of Employees B 72 63
Per month salary cost on which Graluity is payable for all active bers (X thousand) s l,m 1,149.39
Average Monthly Salary (¥ thousan) 2531 18.24
Average past service (years) 4.46 4.59
Average Age (years) 38.06 36.81
Average expected future service (years) - —— - A 1994 | 2119
Term of Liability (ycars) 6.84 7.10
Vested Disconti Gratuity (% thousand) 3,096.80 2,569.80
Discontinuance Gratuity (T thousand) 4.015.57 3.30085

Financial instruments

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the

debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt and total equity of the Company. The Company is not significantly subjec
externally imposed capital requirements. (Also Refer Accounting Ralios)

1 {o any
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30.2 Financial risk management objectives

The Company's finance leam headed by the Finance M: itors and the fi ial risks relating to the operations of the Company through intcrnal 1isk
reporls which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including interest rate risk and other price risk), ciedit risk and
liquidity risk

The company's cxposure to credit risk is primarily from trade receivables which are in the ordinury course of business influenced mainly by the individual
characleristic of cach customer

a  Market risk
The Company’s aclivities does not expose it to the significant financial risks either of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interesi rates, The Company

does not deal in any derivative financial insiruments and external exposure to financial market is significanily limited.
b Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty Lo a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amounts due causing financial loss to the Company. Credit
risk arises from company’s activities in investmenls and receivables from customers., The Company ensure thal sales are made 1o cuslomers wilh appropriate
creditworthiness, Investment are managed against counterparty exposure limils. Te manage this, the Company periodically assesses the key accounts receivable
balances. The Company restricts its fixed income investments to liquid securities carrying high credit rating. As per Ind-AS 109 ; Financial Instruments, the Company
uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. (Refer Note No.7 for details of allowance in respect of trade reccivables)

Trade Receivables: The management has established accounts receivable practice under which customer accounts are regularly monitoied and dedicated sales lcam

which is responsible for collecting dues from the within stipulated period. The revicws stalus of critical accounts on a 1egular basis.
30.3 Financlal Instruments by category As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021
Flnancinl asscts
Carried ar Cost/ Amortised cost
Other financial assets 6,798.72 5.,345.00 4,879.99
Trade receivables 19,359.30 12,125.89 9,552.99
Cash and cash equivalents 45,010,57 371.067 8150
71,168.58 17,848.57 15,016.48
Flnanclal liabllities
Carried at Cost/ Amortised cost
Borrowings 4,260.52 44,941.55 42,999.77
Lcase liabilities 46,567.80 24,060.09 31,387.36
Trade payables 8,791.32 18,537.16 14,341 23
59,619.65 87,538.79 88,728.36
The carrying amounis of Trade Reccivables, Trade Payables and Cash and Cash Equivalents arc considered Lo be the same as their fair values, duc to their short-term
nature
The loans are carried at their carrying value which represents its fair value and security deposits were calculated based on the cash flows discounted using cunent
lending rates. They are classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterpaity credit risk.
30.4 Falr value hierarchy
Financial assels and liabilities include investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with banks, trade reccivables, loans, other linancial asscts, trade
payables, borrowings and other financial liabilitics, whosc fair values approximate (heir carrying amounts largely duc to the shoit term nature of such asscls and
liabilities. Fair value of lcase liabilitics approximate its carrying amounl, as lease liabilities are valued using discounted cash low method. There were no [inancial
asscls and financial liabilitics under level I and level I hicrarchy accordingly, all the {inancial assets and {inancial liabilities are classificd as Level 3.
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identicul assets or linbilitics.
Level 2 — [nputs other thun quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e us prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
Level 3 - Inpuls for the assets or liabilitics that ore not based on observablc market data (unobservable inputs).
31 Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, to mect Company's short-term, medium-term and long-lerm funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by using the internally gencrated reserves an suppoit from the Promoters/ Holding
Compuny, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liubilities. (Also Refer Note on
Accounting Ratios)
The vontraetunl maturity is bosed on the earliest dute on which the Compauiry miy be required 1o pay. The maturity profile of the Compuny is as under;
Particulars o o <lyear | Ito5years > 5 vears [ Total .
Non-interest bearing 13,051.84 - 13,051.84
(20.968.82) (10,431.48) | (31,400.30)
Variable interest rate instruments - - < -
Fixed interest rate instruments = . . z e |
I (31,03847) (1.039.93) - (32,078.40)
Bsc Liabilitics 11,538.64 34,648.94 380.22 46,567.80
(4,978.56) (19.081.52) - (24,060,09)

* Amounts in parenthesis relates 1o previous year
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32

33

34

36

37

Details of material Consumed (including consumables)
Material consumption indigenously obtained and consists of items of various nature and specification and inctudes medical consumables, medicines, ele and

there are no major items of inventory of pharmacy items that are consumed. 1ence details are not fumished

The Company did not have any eatnings in foreipn curtency and it did not have expenditure in foreipn currency during the year ended March 31,2023 (Maich
31,2022: Rs. Nit)

Note: Expenses incuited and paid by employees ol the Company in forcign curtency and reimbursed by the Company in Indian Rupees have not been
considered for this purposes

Internal control system with reference to financial statements

The Company has an intemal control system which is adequate considering the operations of the Company wherein the Ditectors and Seniot Management
Staff's are involved in handling all the day-to-day business aclivities of the Company and also involved in the year-end financial reporting process including
preparation and presentation of the financial statements

In view of the business processes and activities and also considering that accounting operations ate canied out by the internal finance and accounts team which
consist of qualified employees competent to carry out such operations. The company has implemented simple information systems consisling of off-the-shell
packaged software which arc extensively used wilh very high level of acceptance in the industry without much customization and modification The
identification of risks and controls is not a sepatate evaluation but an integral part of the processes and procedures The Management has carried out overall
checks of contiols after the balance sheet date for the purpose of preparation of the financial statements to ensute that there is no material misstatement, therein

The Company do not have a sepatale internal audit amangement and it is not covered under the mandatory pt ovisions of the Companics Act, 2013 lo have an
internal audit system The opetation of the above controls are constantly monitored by the ditectors and these were found to e effectively aperating during the
year and at the year end. However, these ate to be further streamlined considering the essential components of internal conliols stated in Guidance Note on
Audit of Intemal Financial controls over financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Additional Disclosures pursuant to schedule 111 of the Companies Act, 2013;

The Company did not have any tiansactions or balances due/ from with companies struck off undet Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of
Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs 12,032 03 thousand during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and a cash loss amounting to Rs
6,526.73 thousand in the immediately preceding financial year i e, March 31,2022

Accounting Ritios

ERntio Numerator Denominator FY 2022-23 | FY 2021-22 | % Variance | Remarks |
|Current Ratio Current Assets Curment Liabilities 198 | 0.30 | 559% Note | |
| Debt-equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholders equity 007 ! -0.82 | 108% Note | I
Debt service coverage ratio Earnings available for debt  |debt service 009 | 1.13 -92% Note 1
service 1

Return on equity Ratio (ROE) Net Income Openiny Equity 28% 18.98%) 48% Note 2
Inventory lurnover 1atio Revenue fiom opetations Average inventory 3091 27.89 | 11% -

Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio |Net Credit Sales Average Accounts receivable 614 | 7.18 | -14% - |
Trade I"ayables Tumover Ritia Total Purchases Average accounts payable 358 | 215 | 67% Notel |
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Average Working Capital -1199 | 1.92 524% Note 1

Net Profil Ratio |Net Income Net Sales -16%)| -11%) 44% Note 2
Return on capital employed IEBIT | Capital employed -14%)| 35%| -140%|  Note2 |

Note:

1. As stated Note |1, additional investment ftom the during the year fiom the new investor has helped in achieving beiter liquidily position and existing loans
fiom others were fully scltied: This has resulted in improved debt and cunent ratios

2. Increase in operational and other cost have resulted in the increased loss during the year, although there has been significant increase in the total income for
the year,

Definitions

(a) Eamning for available for debt service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenscs like depieciation and other amortisations + Interest 1 other
adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc

(b) Debt service = Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments

(c) Average inventory = (Opening inventory balance + Closing inventory balance) / 2

(d) Net credit sales = Net credit sales consist of gross credit sales minus sales return

(e} Average trade receivables = (Opening trade receivables balance + Closing trade receivables balance)/ 2

(f) Net credit purchases = Net credit purchases consist of gross credit purchases minus purchase teturn

() Average tiade payables = (Opening trade payables balance + Closing trade payables balance) /2

(h) Working capital = Current assets - Current liabilities

(i) Eaming before interest and taxes = Profit before exceptional items and tax + Finance costs - Other Income

(j) Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Defened Tax Liability
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38

o oo o

Loans and adviances

To the best of the knowledge and belief of the management, no funds have been advanced o1 loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to any other person or entity, including foreign cnlities (“Intermediaries™) with (he understanding,
whethet tecorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall ditectly or indirectly lend ot invest in othet persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of (he company (“Ultimale Beneficiaies”) or provide any guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

To the best of its knowledge and belief of the management, no {funds have been received by the Company fiom any peison ot entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indireclly, lender invest in other
peisons or entities identified in any mannet whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*“Ultimate Beneficiaties”) or provide any guaiantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

No transactions to report against the following disclosure requirements as notificd by MCA pursuant to amended Schedule I11 of the Act:

Transactions that are not recorded in the books of account that have been surnendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961

Trading o1 investment in any crypto or virtual currency during the financial year.

Benami Property held under Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunde:

Registration of chatges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies

Relating to borrowed funds : Wilful defaulter

For and on behalf of the Board ol Divectors

WAL

(Signatures for all Notes from | to 39)
As per out separate report of even date attached
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